## Redevelopment Authority of the City of Kaukauna City of Kaukauna Council Chambers Municipal Services Building 144 W. Second Street, Kaukauna

Tuesday, March 25, 2025 at 9:00 AM

## Minutes

In-Person in Common Council Chambers, City of Kaukauna

Chairman Moore called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.

1. Roll Call

Members Present: Karl Kilgas, Leon Vanevenhoven, John Moore, Quin Lenz, Nicci Sprangers, Heather Hayes, Julie Schroeder (virtual)

Other(s) Present: Director Kittel, Associate Planner Nelson

- 2. Approval of Minutes
  - a. Approve Minutes from March 6, 2025

Kilgas made a motion to approve the minutes from March 6, 2025. Seconded by Vanevenhoven. The motion passed unanimously.

3. Old Business

None

- 4. New Business
  - a. Central Block Loan Subordination Document

Director Kittel explained that an oddity occurred with the loan documentation for Central Block LLC, where the city recorded the loan documents one day before the bank. This led to the city having the first lien on the property, and the bank having the second lien. This was not supposed to be the lien order, and the bank is wanting to correct this. By signing the subordination document, the city will have the second lien on the property, which is how it was supposed to be done originally. Chairman Moore just needs to sign off on the subordination document in the presence of a notary.

Kilgas asked what the current timetable is for the Central Block development.

Kittel stated that construction should be complete by the end of April.

Kilgas made a motion to permit Moore to sign the Central Block LLC loan subordination document. Seconded by Lenz. The motion passed unanimously.

b. 2025 Downtown Planters Flower

Director Kittel explained that, for the past two years, RACK has financed the purchase of flowers for the downtown and uptown planters. On average, the amount spent has been around \$400, although up to \$1000 was approved last year. Staff is once again requesting funding for the downtown and uptown planters for up to \$1000, with the expectation that the actual cost will likely be around \$400. Staff received feedback from people that they are wanting more blooming flowers. Staff is planning to reach out to past volunteers as well as potential new volunteers for assistance in watering, and Park Charter School has already expressed interest in volunteering to help plant. The intent moving forward in 2026 is to locate a new funding source or have businesses sponsor the planters.

Moore asked if it was the businesses who were suggesting different flowers.

Kittel clarified that the request for more blooming flowers came from City of Kaukauna residents. There was enough interest that staff is looking at creating a resident beautification committee.

Kilgas brought up that last year there were issues with consistent watering of the plants. He asked how this would be resolved moving forward.

Kittel stated that having additional volunteers, such as Park Charter School, would hopefully help mitigate that issue.

Moore asked how many planters there are.

Associate Planner Nelson explained that there are twelve planters total: nine in the downtown, and three in the uptown.

Sprangers asked if we should look at getting more planters – maybe adding an additional three in 2026.

Kittel explained that there are opportunities for residents to donate planters and that Renew Kaukauna funds could help finance the purchase of additional planters. There may be grant opportunities as well. The only issue with adding more planters is that there would need to be more watering done and it would increase the maintenance time required by staff. Kittel has had a few conversations with the Fire Department to see if they would be open to watering some of the planters, as the Police Department already takes care of the three in front of there station. The volunteers do a great job, but summer vacations mean that sometimes the plants won't be watered for a week or two.

Hayes brought up that many high schools have mandatory volunteer hours and asked if some of the high schoolers might be interested in helping.

Moore responded that those hours are not required over summer vacation, although he would like to see that changed.

Hayes suggested working with a boy scout or girl scout troop.

Kittel agreed that there might be some opportunities available with a girl scout troop. There is one troop that is interested in starting a pollination garden, but they have requested city assistance with keeping it watered. He was not aware of any active boy scout troops that could be reached out to, only cub scouts.

Kilgas asked if there is a planter by the VFW.

Kittel confirmed that there is no planter by the VFW.

Kilgas suggested that staff see if anyone from the VFW would be interested in volunteering, or perhaps the Women's Auxiliary. He also suggested offering signage on the planters for business volunteers or sponsors.

Kittel stated that staff could put stick-in signs in the soil and attach permanent signs to the planter if it is permanently adopted by a group or business. He also mentioned that staff is looking at using more drought resistant flowers.

Kilgas suggested using pansies or marigolds.

Sprangers made a motion to allocate up to \$1000 for flowers or other plants for the downtown and uptown planters. Seconded by Kilgas. Motion passed unanimously.

## 5. Other Business

None

## 6. Adjourn

Kilgas made a motion to adjourn. Seconded by Vanevenhoven. Motion passed unanimously. Adjourned at 9:24 a.m.